
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 21st March, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108AB), First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
22nd November 2017 

6.  INTEGRATED PLACE WORK 

Presentation – by Place Integration Lead, Neighbourhoods Directorate. 

Public Document Pack



7.  HOUSING ALLOCATIONS 7 - 13

A report outlining the Council’s responsibility placed on it by the 
introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act.    

8.  NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2017-18 QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

14 - 20

To consider the 3rd quarter performance 2017/18 – Neighbourhoods 
Directorate 

9.  ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLAN 2017-18 QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

21 - 28

To consider the 3rd quarter performance 2017/18 – Economy 
Directorate 

10.  COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18 

29 - 31

To review the Committee’s work programme. 

11.  COMMITTEE REFERRAL 32 - 33

To consider a referral of an item of business from Rochdale Township 
Committee 

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

13.  ROCHDALE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY – INVESTMENT AND 
MARKETING DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18 

34 - 51

Director of Economy to report 



Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members:
Councillor Neil Butterworth (Chair) Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor John Hartley Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Ann Stott JP (Vice Chair)
Councillor Shah Wazir Councillor June West
Councillor Sameena Zaheer Councillor Peter Williams
Councillor Peter Winkler

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services, Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 22nd November 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Neil Butterworth (Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Hartley, Malcolm, O'Neill, O'Rourke, Stott, Wazir, West and Winkler

OFFICERS:  M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), D. Bowler (Assistant 
Director – Place), M. Robinson (Assistant Director – Planning), N. Maver (the 
Waste & Recycling Programme Manager) and M. Garraway (Committee 
Services).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Zaheer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
28 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
29 Decision: That the minutes of the meeting held on 20th September 
2017.

PRESENTATION - PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER
30 The Committee considered a presentation by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods detailing the consultation responses received to the 
proposed Rochdale Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order.   

The Committee were informed that following consultation a number of items 
included within the original scope of the Order would not be included within 
the final recommendation to Cabinet.  Alternative mechanisms had been 
identified to deal with issues relating to distribution of printed material/leaflets 
and for the Control of commercial or charity collection or soliciting for money 
in the street. The Director of Neighbourhoods identified areas of 
geographically expansion from those originally proposed.   

Decision: That the presentation be noted.

DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION - 6 
MONTH PERFORMANCE REPORT
31 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which informed Members of the Discretionary Crisis Fund’s performance for 
the first 6 months of 2017/18 and provided data on some of the food banks in 
the Borough for the same period.
 
The Discretionary Crisis Fund offered support of those setting up home when 
resettling from temporary accommodation that may need help in acquiring 
essential household items. The scheme also provided a mechanism to make 
small crisis awards for those who found themselves in financial difficulty for 
emergency household fuel or clothes.

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



Members of the Committee, in scrutinising the report, asked for consideration 
to be given as to the how the fund could be better promoted to increase 
awareness of the fund within Wards where there is known to be a need of 
support but the numbers of applications remain low. 

Members raised concerns over the amount of support being offered to 
foodbanks in Middleton when compared to other parts of the Borough.   

Decision – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) Contact be made with Middleton food bank to establish if the fund can 
provide assistance.

HOUSING STRATEGY 2017-2020
32 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
detailing the Council’s Housing Strategy 2017-2022, which sets out the 
Council’s housing ambitions for the next 5 years.  The strategy contains 5 key 
strategic objectives including; increasing the supply of new homes; making 
better use of our existing properties; developing a range of housing options; 
protecting the most vulnerable; and contributing to health & wellbeing.

In response to Members questions the Chief Planning Officer detailed the 
impact of demolishing property when set against new build targets.  Members 
sought assurance that the target build on brownfield sites was realistically 
achievable and questioned whether the transport infrastructure would support 
the development sustainably.  

Decision: That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Chief Planning Officer provide statistics detailing the number of new 
build properties by Council Tax band and a breakdown of which postcodes 
people are moving from when moving in to a new build property in the 
Borough. 

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE 
PLANS 2017-18 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
33 The Committee scrutinised a report detailing progress at the end of 
Quarters 1 and 2 (1st April – 30th September 2017) towards achievement of 
the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 and 
Neighbourhood Directorate Plan 2017-18.

Members sought assurances that existing Rochdale Town Centre remained 
on course for completion and questioned what opportunities were being 
considered for application in Middleton and Heywood.

Decision: That the report be noted. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT POLICY UPDATE
34 The Committee received a presentation from Director of 
Neighbourhoods updating on forthcoming amendments to the Enforcement 
Policy. 

Page 5



Members were informed that both changes to legislation and the proposed 
Rochdale Town Centre Public Protection Order were driving necessary 
amendments to the existing Policy.

Decision: That the presentation be noted.

WASTE COLLECTION POLICY UPDATE
35 The Committee received a presentation from the Waste & Recycling 
Programme Manager updating on forthcoming amendments to the Waste 
Collection Policy. 

Members questioned policies relating to rural garden waste disposal and 
sought clarification as to alternative solutions considered.  Members 
requested an update on changes to the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal 
levy and how that aligned to Policy development.

Decision: That the presentation be noted.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
36 The Committee considered the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18.  

Members sought clarification as to when the playing pitch strategy would be 
considered by the Committee.  Members sought clarification as to the reasons 
the Winter Resilience report had not been brought before the Committee.
 
Decision: That the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18 be noted

GMCA SCRUTINY MINUTES
37 Decision: That the minutes of the GMCA Police And Crime Panel held 
on 5th June, 2017; the GMCA Economy, Business Growth and Skills Scrutiny 
Committee held on 13th October 2017; and, the Housing, Planning and 
Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 7th September and 18th 
October 2017; be noted.

Page 6



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 21st March 2018
Portfolio Councillor Neil Emmott - 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Environment

Report Author Helen Bellis
Public / Private Document Public 

Housing Allocations

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The report outlines a proposal which enables the Council to meet the 
responsibility placed on it by the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act.   

The proposal is to move from a Choice Based Lettings approach to allocate 
accommodation, to making direct offers to those who are found to be 
homeless and the Council has a statutory duty to rehouse.

The report also advises that on occasions, it will be necessary for the Council 
to make an offer of accommodation in the private rented sector, in order to 
discharge its duty.

A future proposal to amend the Housing Allocations Policy later this year is 
also detailed within the report. 

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

For members to recommend for approval the proposed changes to the 
allocation of accommodation, for those applicants we have a statutory duty to 
rehouse.

For members to recommend for approval the proposal to discharge duty in 
private rented accommodation, where appropriate and necessary.

For members to recommend that delegated approval of future policy changes 
to the Council’s Housing Allocation Policy, be granted to the Director of 
Neighbourhoods in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
Environment and the Council’s Chief Finance Officer.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The proposed interim policy amendments will enable the Council to support 
those it has a statutory duty to rehouse, into appropriate accommodation in a 
more timely fashion and will aid the Council in meeting the responsibilities 
placed on the local authority by the Homelessness Reduction Act.

Delegation of authority would enable officers to monitor housing outcomes, as 
a result of the interim policy proposal and the following proposed new Housing 
Allocations Policy, and respond promptly to required policy changes.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Interim Policy Proposal – Direct Offers 

The Homelessness Reduction Act (HRA) comes in to force in April 2018. In 
order to meet the requirements of the Act, the Council needs to amend its 
Housing Allocation Policy.

The proposal is to move away from Choice Based Lettings, whereby an 
applicant makes ‘bids’ on accommodation advertised on the HomeChoice 
website and move to direct offers of accommodation for those the Council has 
a statutory duty to rehouse. 

This means a reasonable offer will be made directly to the applicant. The offer 
will, as best is able, meet all their housing need requirements. The Housing 
Act 1996, and as amended by the Homelessness Reduction Act, requires the 
local authority to take into account the personal circumstances and  location of 
accommodation offered when determining its suitability; however the Council 
does have scope to make the offer anywhere within the borough.

Within the current scheme and policy all applicants use Choice Based Lettings 
to access accommodation, by ‘bidding’ on properties they wish to be 
considered for. However, Homelessness officers tend to do this for applicants 
they are working with, considering their options and available accommodation; 
therefore, there will be very little visible difference to the applicants to which 
the proposal will apply.

Rationale for Amendment

The Council expects to see a significant increase in people presenting as 
homeless and the HRA places more responsibility on the local authority in 
relation to homelessness prevention.

Moving people on from temporary accommodation in to secure tenancies will 

Page 8



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

be a crucial factor in managing the challenges the HRA will bring, as there will 
be increased demand on this type of accommodation.

The direct offer approach is a much more managed approach to accessing 
accommodation and will support those who are more vulnerable and who may 
struggle to navigate the Choice Based Lettings approach.

The proposed policy change formalises what is currently happening on the 
front line and gives the Council the flexibility it requires, whilst also ensuring 
the Council is not open to legal challenge.
 
Interim Policy Proposal – Private Rented Sector Offers 

Section 193 of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011) 
allows local authorities to end the full housing duty by making a ‘private rented 
sector offer’. The offer must be of an assured shorthold tenancy with a 
minimum fixed term of one year.

With the anticipated increase in people presenting as homeless, it may be 
necessary in some instances, to discharge duty in to the private rented sector.

Rationale for Amendment

The Council faces a challenge to meet the responsibilities placed upon it by 
the Homelessness Reduction Act and this approach would relieve some of the 
pressure. 

The Council already finds it difficult to access accommodation to meet need 
and this approach will not only increase options, but will enable the Council to 
rehouse people in areas where there may be limited access to social housing 
stock, or to larger properties when required, that may not be available via the 
social housing route.

As mentioned previously, demand on temporary accommodation will 
significantly rise under the HRA and this approach will enable the Council to 
move people on in to secure accommodation, in a timely fashion which is 
more preferable and beneficial for those living in temporary accommodation.

It enables officers to make best use of rented accommodation available across 
all sectors within the borough; as in some wards there are more private rented 
properties than social housing stock and a greater number of larger homes.

Legislation enables the local authority to take this approach if necessary and it 
is already being undertaken in other local authority areas.

Future changes to the Housing Allocations Policy

The Council is in the process of reviewing its Allocations Policy and Housing 
Scheme. Amendments to the policy will be addressing issues in relation to a 
rise in applicants from outside of the borough, recognising those who 

Page 9



4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

contribute positively to the borough and ensuring those who the Council has a 
statutory duty to rehouse have the best opportunity to access accommodation.

Potential amendments which are being considered include the following:

 a residency test, whereby applicants who have lived consistently in the 
borough, for 2 or more years, will be given priority over those who have 
not;

 a minimum of 50% of available accommodation will be advertised solely 
for those in housing need and will not be available to be bid on by 
applicants without a need;

 priority for those who can evidence a ‘community contribution’ to the 
borough - working or volunteering;

 remove the current ‘child at height’ policy, whereby applicants with 
children under the age of 10  will not be offered accommodation within 
a scheme where there are 3 or more floors, and where there is no lift;

 increase the amount of arrears an applicant may have and will still 
accepted on to the Council’s Housing Scheme, however applicants will 
be expected to enter in to a repayment plan before being offered 
accommodation;

 the introduction a Housing Panel, which looks at complex cases and 
works towards a solution to access accommodation for the borough’s 
most vulnerable applicants; and

 housing priority being awarded for a maximum of 12 months and 
limiting the number of offers applicants refuse, before action is taken.

Rationale For Considerations

The housing climate is constantly shifting along with need and demand, and 
the Council needs to ensure its Allocation Policy and Housing Scheme is fit for 
purpose.

The Council has seen an increase in out of borough applicants and from 
applicants who have spent very little time living here, and wants to ensure 
those who have lived in the borough for some time and are contributing 
positively are recognised and given priority. 

Increasingly applicants to the Council’s Housing Scheme are in arrears. An 
amendment to the current policy would enable applicants with a higher 
amount of arrears to be registered for rehousing, rather than being found 
ineligible. However the proposal being considered is that applicants with 
arrears will need to enter in to a repayment plan to address the arrears and 
prove a track record of repayment before being offered accommodation.

Page 10



4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

Many applicants are bidding on accommodation which they then refuse. This 
is causing a significant workload and delays in offering accommodation to 
applicants who are bidding with sincerity. 

Awarding priority for 12 months will also encourage applicants to be realistic 
about their housing options and consider what accommodation is truly 
available to them in the areas of their choice, via the social housing route. 
There is a mismatch in need and accommodation type in some areas of the 
borough and in some cases, applicants would be better to consider private 
rented accommodation to alleviate their housing need.

Delegated Authority 
 
The new future policy and the HRA will see the Council moving in to 
unchartered waters and officers within Strategic Housing, would like the 
comfort of knowing that amendments can be made quickly, to address any 
issues arising and to ensure the desired outcomes from the amendments are 
achieved.

However, once the future policy has been finalised and approved, a report 
detailing the final amendments will be submitted to members for information 
purposes.  

Alternatives Considered

No alternatives have been considered, as the Council will be unable to meet 
the challenges of the HRA if it continues to use the current policy. 

RBH deliver both the Housing Allocations service and the Homelessness 
Service on behalf of the Council. The proposed changes will be reflected in 
the updated service specification/contract.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 There are no cost / budget implications in relation to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Council needs to amend the way it offers accommodation to those it has 
a statutory duty to and also needs to consider using private rented 
accommodation where necessary. 

If the Council doesn’t take this approach, it is unlikely to manage the 
challenge placed upon it by the responsibilities of the HRA.

Equally, if the Council proceeded with direct offers and used private rented 
accommodation to discharge duty without the proposed policy changes, then 
it would be at risk of legal challenge.

Page 11



6.4 Please find below a summary of the new Homelessness Reduction Act 
statutory duties:

 It extends the period an applicant is “threatened with homelessness”:
 It extends the period that someone can be threatened with

homelessness from 28 to 56 days, enabling earlier application/ 
approach.

 A strengthened advice and information duty: clarifies the duty on 
authorities to provide advisory services to help to prevent 
homelessness.

 A new duty to assess housing need and agree a personalised housing 
plan: Requires authorities to carry out a housing options assessment 
for eligible applicants, homeless or threatened with homelessness 
within 56 days. 

 This assessment informs a personal housing plan with identified steps 
needed by the applicant and the authority to secure housing/prevent 
homelessness.

 A new ‘prevention’ duty in cases of threatened homelessness requires 
local authorities to help ensure that suitable accommodation does not 
cease to be available for applicants who are threatened with 
homelessness, regardless of priority need, for 56 days.

 Should an applicant not be compliant with their personalised housing 
plan then the authority can discharge its duty towards them.

 A new ‘relief’ duty: following the 56 day prevention duty, a new ‘relief’ 
duty requires local authorities to help applicants to secure 
accommodation (for another 56 days) for all applicants who the 
authority is satisfied are homeless and eligible for assistance.

 Following this new ‘relief’ duty (after the 56 days) the existing statutory 
homelessness application process commences with investigations into 
priority need, intentionality and (where appropriate) local connection.

 There will also be a new duty on public services to notify a local 
housing authority if they come into contact with someone they think 
may be homeless or at risk of becoming homeless: It is hoped that this 
measure will ensure that a person’s housing situation is considered 
when they come into contact with wider public services, and 
encourage public services to build strong relationships based on local 
need and circumstances.

 Each of the above new duties carries with it a number of opportunities 
for the applicant to request a review of the decision made/process 
carried out. 

 The HRA provides a new statutory basis for the homeless prevention 
work and also places a duty on applicants to cooperate with the 
Council which ought to assist in resolving applicants’ homelessness 
issues, and an applicant’s failure to cooperate will terminate the 
Council’s duty. There is also a new express duty placed on public 
services to notify a local housing authority of individuals they believe 
to be homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.

 The staffing and resourcing of the service to deal with the new duties 

Page 12



will no doubt be the subject of a separate report once the Council’s 
requirements become clear.

 The new policy is required to be compliant with the Equality Act to 
prevent discrimination against those with proected characteristics 
under the Act.   

Consultation

7.1

7.2

No formal consultation has taken place; however consultation with officers in 
the Homeless Team has been undertaken. 

Statutory consultation will be undertaken on the new draft allocation policy 
later this year.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. N/A

For Further Information Contact: Helen Bellis, Tel: 01706 924460, 
helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 13



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 21st March 2018
Portfolio Councillor Emsley – 

Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community and Culture
Councillor Neil Emmott – 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Housing 
Councillor O’Rourke – 
Cabinet Member for 
Business, Skills and 
Employment
  

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document Public

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/18: Quarter Three 
Performance Update 

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – December 31st 2017) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhood 
Directorate Plan 2017-18.

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

The committee previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2017-18 for the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress towards targets contained within directorate plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Neighbourhoods Directorate are 
attached at Appendix 1. Actions within the appendix have been colour coded 
in accordance with the following criteria

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



3.3

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendices include a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Neighbourhood Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

Performance Overview

Eleven actions (85%) included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 are not yet due 
for completion but are currently on target. A further two actions (15%) have 
been met; ‘Develop Rochdale asks in relation to GM devolution and ensure 
effective communication around maximisation of opportunities’ and ‘Roll out 
staff recognition programme’.  

The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting 
its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

Page 15



Costs and Budget Summary

5.   None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Neighbourhood Directorate Plan 
2017-18

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

4.5 Not applicable

Page 16



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

   

 

N17013 Develop Rochdale asks in relation to GM devolution and 
ensure effective communication around maximisation of opportunities 

 31 December 2017   

Objectives: Increased awareness and influence of devolution across Council  

A Policy Adviser role is now in place who is responsible for coordinating the Council’s work at a Greater Manchester level. This will include 
supporting the Chief Executive on Greater Manchester issues and implications for Rochdale. The Policy Adviser will also be preparing monthly 
updates on GM issues and is reviewing meetings in which the Council is involved.  

10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17001 Support the Community Safety Partnership to improve 
community safety in the borough 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Commission services for Domestic Violence and Victim Support (KPI~s TBC)....Disrupt of organised crime and modern slavery....Increase 
participation in anti-social behaviour risk assessment conference (ASBRAC) process....Implementation of recommendations from domestic homicide 
reviews....Addressing issues through allocation of Police and Crime Commissioner funding....Establish new Public Realm Team to include:..Public Realm 
Officers..Town Centre Wardens..HIT Team....Significant increases in FPN~s 
 
A strategic assessment to determine priorities and key themes is underway and will be completed in Quarter 4. This will assist the Council, Police and 
partners in developing the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Plan for the next 3 years... 

 

 

 

 

 
10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17002 Safeguard and protect vulnerable people and improve 
community cohesion 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area (baseline TBC when q4 16/17 figures 
available)....Reduce incidents of Domestic Abuse per 1,000 residents....Increase the number of homelessness  preventions compared to 16-17 ....Average 
length of stay of homelessness households in B&B for less than 2 weeks (stat figure 6 weeks) .. 

 

The Council continues to undertake daily tension monitoring, resulting in weekly reports. This allowed multi agency partners to intervene and 
mitigate risks and reduce tensions for example leading up to and following the summer period of Far Right demonstrations. The Council works 
closely with a range of groups and community organisations to develop activities which promote community resilience, engagement, cohesion 
and counter extremism. Significant work has been undertaken to support Greater Manchester authorities in the regional Channel Peer Reviews 
as well as recovery work following the Manchester bombing and consultation on the GM Mayors Cohesion Commission.....There is a Diversity 
Calendar which informs key events throughout the year, including recently Hate Crime Awareness week. The Council has completed its work 
with the Foundation for Peace to develop stronger communities through holding difficult conversations and has begun working on another 
project with the organisation RECLAIM in Rochdale Borough which looks at developing stronger Youth Leadership and Mentoring 
opportunities. .. 

10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17003 Support delivery of housing target  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Regeneration of 3 infill/ brownfield sites in urban areas....64 affordable homes built by year end....Increase no. Empty Homes brought back into 
use as a direct result of intervention by the Empty Property team compared to 16-17 – target 675 in 2017/18... 

 

 

P
age 17



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

Regenda are in the final stages of seeking planning permission for the Ramsay Terrace site and are progressing with the Welfield surgery site 
but this is running behind the Ramsay Terrace timeframe. Work has commenced on Willow Park. Sudden Brook site will be marketed in the 
near future....Boots Site, Newbold and The Strand - site under construction..All 3 developments are on site and will complete by year 
end....The overall target for market growth (empty properties back into use and new build) was hampered by RBH demolitions of obsolete 
stock and therefore the projected target for New Homes Bonus was not fully achieved by the Oct 2017 count date. The empty property element 
under-achieved by 25 properties from the target figure... 

10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17004 Improve recycling   31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in amount of waste being recycled to achieve a 50% IAA recycling rate....Reduction in amount of waste going to landfill by 681 tonnes or 
1.9%.... 

 

The recycling figure for quarter 1 April to June (which are the latest figures available) Including waste from Street cleaning, Fly tipping, Bulky 
waste and Parks and Grounds maintenance show a 1st Quarter  Recycling figure of 51.6% ..The same figure for 2016-17 Quarter 1 showed an 
annual recycling figure of 50.0%.. 

05/01/18 

 

 

 

N17005 Sustain our parks and access to the countryside  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Maintain current Green Flag status and Increase in number of  parks of ‘Green Flag~ standard from eight to nine  

Work continues on Green flag submissions which are submitted annually by the end of January...2 additional sites are to be submitted for 2018 
those being Denehurst Park & Middleton Memorial Gardens..The Green Flag award is an annual process which will be judged again in Q2 
2019.. 

05/01/18 

 

 

 

N17006 Improve the cleanliness of our Streets and Open spaces  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in the numbers of Official Green Volunteers from 82 to 100 ....The percentage of land at an acceptable standard...Target  90%....  

The Green Volunteer Data Base has been refreshed to remove some inactive members. The current number of active volunteers is 93.....The 
percentage of land at an acceptable standard for Q3 was 96.06 %    

05/01/18 

 

 

 

N17007 Improve accessibility through Northern Gateway scheme, J19 
Link Road and Gateways 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Highways feasibility work completed to support Northern Gateway scheme....Design of J19 Link Road completed and ready for procurement and 
delivery by end 2021....Key Gateways improved throughout the Borough... 
 
Bid to NPIF for extension to J19 scheme was unsuccessful. The bid has provided the opportunity to prepare a funding “masterplan” which is available and 
shows how Northern Gateway could come together. The J19 Link Road is now fully designed with H&S and contract documents written, Procurement 
Strategy should be ready for approval Jan ‘18 All gateways schemes continue to be discussed and agreed with completion of the banner installation expected 
during Q4 

 

 

 
22/12/17 

P
age 18



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

 

 

 

N17008 Keep our roads in good condition and clean  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Deliver programme of flood resilience works and develop further flood resilience plans....Deliver annual Highways Capital 
programme....Achieve/maintain a level 3 rating for the ‘DfT Incentive Funding Assessment~ ....More of our streets and public areas to be of a good standard –
..Reduction in % of the Boroughs classified roads where maintenance should be considered.. 

 

Detailed investigations have taken place at a number of the sites with a view to starting works in Jan ~18 and further detailed investigation 
works. Complete delivery is expected during year 2 and 3 as originally programmed.....Approximately 75% of the Highway programme is 
complete with the remainder scheduled for completion by the year end.....Reviews and updates of the submission to the DfT have begun and is 
on-going. Deadline submission date is 2nd February 2018 and we remain confident our Level 3 status will be maintained.....The highway 
network condition continues to be good and in accordance with national criteria. A two year programme of planned works is being prepared to 
ensure we continue to see a further improvement, particularly the unclassified network... 

02/01/18 

The percentage of Highways at an acceptable standard of cleanliness for Q3 was 96.06 %    05/01/18 
 

 

 

N17009 Implement customer improvement action plan including 
delivery of the Connected Council Programme phase 2 to enhance 
customer experience 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of customers satisfied with Council services (baseline data to be made available via Residents Survey)....Percentage of customers 
satisfied with quality of call handled by contact centre....Percentage of customers satisfied that the contact centre adviser was helpful and attentive.. 

 

Approaching 10,000 registrations and over 11,000 customer tasks undertaken through MyAccount and expecting further increases as channel 
shift push starts. Council Tax eBilling and online business rates successfully made live in MyAccount. Work underway on other Council Tax 
and Benefits online functionality, and Parking Services transformation.....The Contact Centre continues to perform to high standard, meeting all 
KPIs and customer satisfaction scores consistently above 98%.....Work is underway with Customer Services and Libraries team on staff 
training, processes and purpose to further improve the Council’s face-to-face offer..... 

10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17010 Roll out place-based Public Service Reform initiatives to 
improve outcomes for residents in our high demand neighbourhoods 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Reduced volume of high level/ high cost responses....Numbers of people engaged in College Bank..Numbers of people engaged in Lower Falinge 
programme....Numbers of people engaged in Kirkholt programme....Increased employment from within the cohort....Increased skills levels from within the 
cohort....Improved wellbeing from within the cohort.. 

 

Integrated Place Teams are operating in Kirkholt, College Bank and Lower Falinge.  The Kirkholt Team is continuing to achieve reductions in 
demand for crisis services and positive outcomes such as sustained tenancies or employment; and operates as a “business as usual” team.  
The team in College Bank and Lower Falinge is working as a GM early adopter for public service reform.  It is up and running and engaging 
with the top 10% crisis demand cases in the neighbourhood.  The integrated teams (comprising council staff, GMP officers, housing, health, 
community and voluntary sector and volunteers) are working intensively with around 400 people.  This work is integrating with Early Help and 
Health and Social Care transformation and plans are in place for continuation / roll out.   

10/01/18 

 

 

P
age 19



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

 

N17012 Launch new three-year communications strategy and 2017-18 
plan in support of themes of:  Jobs / employment, Place tourism & 
Childhood obesity 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: To confirm baseline information from Perception Survey. ....Increased media coverage and social media audiences and engagement....Increase 
number of schools who gain the GM healthy eating award and are contributing to reducing child obesity. .. 

 

The Council’s Communications Plan has been drafted and the action plan for 2017/18 progressing well with a wide range of positive events 
and promotions completed. The priority themes are around economic growth, tourism, place and childhood obesity. A range of targeted events 
have taken place on childhood obesity linked to a range of other activity, including the rolling out of healthier school meals in line with 
Government targets...A 3 year strategy is being presented to the Leader of the Council so that it can be progressed. 

10/01/18 

 

 

 

N17011 Roll out staff recognition programme  30 November 2017   

Objectives: Numbers nominations....Maximised sponsorship..  

There were 401 nominations received for staff and Council teams in the ACE Staff Awards 2017 from residents, partners, elected members 
and other colleagues. The standard of nominations was extremely high and staff panels were involved in the longlisting process. On 30th 
November the awards ceremony took place at Rockdale Town hall and was a tremendous success and celebration of our staff. The ACE 
Awards will be an annual event, with this year’s ceremony already booked for 29th November and many of the existing sponsors confirming 
that they will continue to support the event...... 

10/01/18 

 

 

 
 

   

 

P
age 20



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 21st March 2018
Portfolio Councillor O’Rourke - 

Cabinet Member for 
Business, Skills & 
Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document Public

Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18: Quarter Three Performance 
Update 

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – December 31st 2017) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2017-18

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

The committee previously approved the Directorate Plan for 2017-18 for the 
Economy Directorate.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



3.3

3.4

amber or purple.

Appendix 2 provides information on the Q3 performance of Rochdale 
Development Agency.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

Performance Overview

100% (10) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 are not yet 
due for completion but are currently on target.

The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting 
its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

Quarter 3 Summary

Following the Council’s decision to reaffirm its commitment to the Rochdale 
Riverside development, significant progress is underway. The main contractor 
for the Rochdale Riverside development was appointed in early January and 
preliminary ground works have since commenced.  Three more occupiers will 
be announced shortly. Remedial work has been completed on the former 
Santander building and structural work is underway to provide indoor facilities 
as part of the new Rochdale market.

The borough’s employment rate exceeded the target set (64.3% by March 18) 
but improving performance remains very challenging.  Currently 64.4% of the 
working age population are in employment.  However, this the lowest 
employment rate of all Greater Manchester districts and significantly below the 

Page 22



4.4

4.5

national average of 74.4%.  Unemployment in the borough has fallen for the 
5th consecutive quarter but remains the second highest rate in Greater 
Manchester.

Three new businesses were attracted to the borough in Q3 creating 47 new 
jobs.  Council support was provided for 2 expanding local businesses which 
plan to create 31 new jobs over the next 2 years.  The Council’s Local Positive 
Recruitment Policy has been launched to ring-fence all jobs up to Grade 3 to 
local residents. Support will be provided by the Directorate for unemployed 
borough residents to apply for these jobs and assist those who may be 
unsuccessful. The performance of externally funded skills and employment 
contracts continues to be high and two new contracts for careers advice have 
been recently won. This quarter the Greater Manchester Working Well 
(programme for unemployed with health conditions into work) supported 248 
borough residents into work and performance remains on target.

The seven new industrial units at Dodgson Street were handed over from the 
developer in October and were very quickly fully let. More units are now being 
planned to meet demand. A Planning application for 60,000 square feet of 
small units on Kingsway Plot D has been submitted, and the redevelopment of 
the former Tesco and Sainsbury’s units on Stakehill is now complete. The 
borough has a wide size range of industrial and office accommodation which 
minimises the risk of property availability being a barrier to growth or inward 
investment. Marketing of the borough is being stepped up with new 
propositions for the manufacturing and logistics sector developed by the RDA 
and will be used in conjunction with activity from Borough Ambassadors 
programme whereby mainly private sector representatives work with us to 
promote the borough for investment and economic growth.

Three acquisitions have been made with the Council’s Property Growth Fund 
in 2017/18, bringing in net annual income of £300,000 for an investment of 
£20m.

A Heritage Action Zone Bid for Rochdale Town Centre to Historic England has 
been successful which is a 5 year project and start officially in May. Covering 
Drake Street and the town centre conservation area, the aim is to bring some 
of the key historic buildings back to life for residential or business use. A  
Heritage At Risk Grant application for Hopwood Old Hall has also submitted to 
Historic England in December 2017 to undertake stabilisation works to secure 
the building.

Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Page 23



Consultation

7. Detailed in the report

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Appendix 1 -  Economy 
Directorate Plan 2017-18

Appendix 2 - RDA Performance 
Report

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen,  
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 24



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

   

 

 E17006 Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially begin 
construction of Rochdale Riverside. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure planning consent for Rochdale Riverside scheme....Commence construction of Rochdale Riverside scheme....New outdoor market 
operational in Rochdale town centre....Town Centre Residential Strategies agreed for Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale....3 year Rochdale Town Centre Action 
Plan agreed... 

 

The Council has resolved to reaffirm its commitment to the Rochdale Riverside retail and leisure development in early January.  Following this 
decision, a contractor has been appointed and preliminary ground works to begin the construction of this development have since commenced.  
The Council has nominated a Town Centre as part of the GM Mayor’s Town Centre Challenge.  A decision on the Council’s bid for Housing 
Infrastructure Funding for Rochdale town centre not expected before Spring 2018.....Site Investigations for the Rochdale Riverside scheme 
undertaken in September and October. Three more occupiers signed up to be announced shortly...Overall funding package agreed. Final 
contract price agreed in late December and a cabinet meeting was arranged for early Jan to agree to proceed.....Rochdale market Phase 1 
(remediation work) is complete. Phase 2 (structural work) in progress. Phase 3 (fit out work) detailed design underway with contract to follow 
Phase 2. The outdoor market has been relocated to a temporary site on lower Yorkshire Street operating three days a week. In respect of the 
permanent site a scheme of servicing agreed with Highways and is subject to consultation. There are some issues to be resolved with both the 
operator and stake holders. Final agreement has been secured on loading and unloading arrangements. Phase 3 contract discussions underway. 
Loading has now been agreed and work will be programmed in Q4. Layout still under discussion with the operator, contract is close to 
completion. CPO complete.H137.TRO details being finalised with consultation due to take place with affected parties in January. .. 

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17001 Increase the number of local people into employment (and 
increase employment rate in the Borough)  

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Influence the number of people claiming out of work benefit through: ..1)    Minimum of 380 people accessing employment through Employment 
Links and.. Working Well contracts...2)    100% take up of RBC apprenticeship progression and HGV training schemes..3)    Minimum of 20 front line council and 
partner staff trained to offer first stage jobs and skills support in community venues. Attracting new businesses by developing Council units – minimum 5 per 
annum..Minimum 350 jobs created through RDA support........ 

 

The borough’s employment rate has exceeded the target set (64.3% by March 18), but improving performance remains very challenging. 
Currently 64.4% of the working age population are in employment. However, this is the lowest employment rate of all Greater Manchester 
districts and significantly below the national average of 74.4%. Unemployment in the borough has fallen for the 5th consecutive quarter but 
remains the second highest rate in Greater Manchester...Quarter 3 local activity to help improve the employment rate includes the attraction of 3 
new businesses to the borough creating 47 new jobs,  support for 2 expanding local businesses which plan to create 31 new jobs over the next 2 
years, and free recruitment services for businesses and employment and skills support for job seekers to ensure local people gain employment.  
The council also launched the new Local Positive Recruitment Policy to ring-fence all jobs up to Grade 3 to local residents.....44 new enquiries 
received and ongoing support to 19 existing enquiries in Q3...6 project successes secured in Q3 including three inward investors –  these 
projects will create 78 new jobs in the borough... 

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17002 Increase the value of inward investment and indigenous 
business growth. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Support local business growth and promote inward investment through a targeted marketing campaign..Generate 20 leads aimed towards Target 
Sectors....Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an Account Management strategy for Local Businesses – target 50 

 

 

P
age 25



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

businesses....Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver minimum 4 events per annum....£23m of private 
sector investment generated by assisted projects.... 

Revised copy for manufacturing and logistics sector propositions has been prepared. This will be integrated into the RDA website and developed 
into short reports.               ..Targeted marketing will be undertaken in 2018/19 in conjunction with the Rochdale place Brand initiative that is also 
focusing attracting inward investment in these target sectors.    ..No funds have yet been identified for research and analysis of the ICT and 
business services sectors. To be reviewed in Q4.    

10/01/18 

 

 

 

E17003 Increase the land brought forward for residential & employment 
development (Council and private sector land). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Consult on Draft Site Allocations Plan Document....Secure planning consent for J19 link road....Secure detailed planning consents for significant 
brownfield sites e.g. Akzo Nobel, British Vita....Bring forward Council sites for disposal or regeneration e.g. Dodgson Street, Former HMR sites....Promote the 
Borough’s portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial sites for reoccupation, refurbishment by:....(1) Securing the reoccupation of former 
ALDI and Tesco units on Stakehill..(2) Target of 2 new build units developed on Kingsway... 

 

The seven new industrial units at Dodgson Street were handed over from the developer in October and are fully let. Work is actively in progress 
to design and procure additional units at Bradfearns (Oldham Road) and at Plot D Kingsway...Investigation of the viability of creating managed 
workspace units in Middleton is under way.....11 account management visits in Q3. Marketing Agency appointed in October and work underway 
for January event. Planning applications were submitted in Q3 for 60,000 square feet of small units on Plot D and for a Balance Power green 
energy scheme.    ..The redevelopment of the former Tesco and Sainsbury’s units on Stakehill were completed in late 2017... 

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17004 Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and 
revenue). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure 2% growth in overall rental levels by proactive management of Council assets....Minimum of 15 Council assets brought to auction....Identify 
Council assets for disposal to generate capital receipts....Deliver the savings targets by investment in property through the Commercial Investment Fund....Apply 
20% fee increase for processing planning applications ....Achieve 5% increase in Building Control income....Secure additional £1m Business Rate payable 
growth through RDA assisted projects... 

 

Three acquisitions have been completed so far in 2017/18, bringing in an additional rental income of £1.4m for an investment of £20m.A number 
of sites are being prepared for disposal for residential development, including 5 sites on Langley, and land surrounding Tonge Hall, 
Middleton...The review of the investment portfolio is being completed and is likely to have a significant action plan of improvements and 
remodeling. 

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17005 Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council assets 
portfolio and make it fit for purpose and sustainable. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Complete Investment Strategy and review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for revenue and capital income  

The requirements of the Asset Strategy continue to underpin the actions of Estates & Assets team and the Operational Asset management 
Group. Some actions have been superseded or are unlikely to be achievable. A report will be presented to the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee following the end of the current financial year. 

09/01/18 

P
age 26



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

 

 

 

E17007 Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural 
environment. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Progress delivery of River Roch (Littleborough – Rochdale) flood alleviation scheme (in partnership with Environment Agency):....1) Support EA to 
complete Business Case and final design....Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower Falinge and Rochdale Infirmary sites....10 
positive actions taken to resolve significant breaches of planning/building control regulations to improve condition of derelict/vacant land and building 
construction standards across Borough... 

 

Outline Business Case for the Roch scheme to now be submitted by the Environment Agency in Feb/March 2018 to accommodate additional 
appraisal and options. Ground investigations completed. Additional funding contributions still being sought from local beneficiaries and 
government/European funding sources. Landowner negotiations underway regarding Right to Flood agreements for flood storage areas. Further 
public consultation to be confirmed for Spring/Summer 2018. Although there has been a slight slippage of the anticipated time for submitting the 
Outline Business Case due to site investigations, option testing and modeling, the EA target timeline for starting on site remains on schedule for 
Summer 2019.     

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17008 Increase the quality and best use of the Borough’s Heritage 
assets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Complete Middleton THI project to include restoration of Long Street Church and School....Develop viable and sustainable strategies for the repair 
and reuse of the Borough’s heritage assets to include:..(1) Agree long term strategy for re-use of Rochdale Town Hall..(2) Prepare development brief for 
marketing/disposal of land around Tonge Hall for enabling development ..(3) Secure grant funding for an agreed schedule of repair works to Hopwood Old 
Hall..(4) Submit Stage 2 HLF Bid for GM Fire Service Museum....Progress the ELR extension to Castleton through:....(1) Adoption of Regeneration Masterplan 
for Heywood Station and Action Plan..(2)  Completion of feasibility study at Castleton station... 

 

Heritage Action Zone Bid submitted  successfully to Heritage Lottery Fund in December. Grant officer has been allocated and bid will assessed 
by HLF for a decision in April / May 2018. Visit of Trustees will take place in February / March 2018 as part of assessment process. Rochdale 
Town Hall project is sole applicant from North West Region. Subject to a successful outcome of the HLF bid and cabinet approval, procurement 
of the design team will commence. Strategy being prepared based on potential for unsuccessful HLF application.....Land ownership issues 
around Tonge Hall are being clarified following discussions with Historic England. There is developer interest in the site.  Once any emerging 
issues resolved,  the site can be marketed for residential development. Mid-Point review held with HLF for Fire Service Museum bid and scheme 
passed. HLF have notified project that R2 submission will again be competitive however improvements to project will provide strong case for 
funding. Public consultation on plans due to take place in Mid-January. Heritage At Risk Grant application submitted to Historic England in 
December 2017 to bring forward emergency stablisation works that will secure the building to support viable reuses and further feasibility work by 
Hopwood Dupree... 

10/01/18 

 

 

 

E17009 Secure tangible benefit to the Borough from GM 
Strategies/policies/funding. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure £10m funding from GM for Rochdale projects....Input to GMCA preparation of Greater Manchester Plan for Homes and Jobs....Prepare 
Rochdale Rail Strategy to support GM Rail Plan....Form partnerships with adjoining Districts to plan delivery of cross boundary development 
opportunities....Prepare a pipeline of transport investment projects to support 2040 Transport Strategy and development of a GM Transport Fund 2....Work with 

 

P
age 27



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

11 January 2018 
 

  

         

Oldham to secure a direct Metrolink service to Manchester Piccadilly....Ensure leading performance in GM for GMCA commissioned Skills for Employment 
programme delivered by Employment Links through:..1) Qualifications..2) Jobs. 

Digital Infrastructure Strategy (including Get Digital Faster Superfast Broadband) The final BT cabinets in the programme will be completed by 
March 2018 when the programme ends with over 99% of the borough’s post codes being able to purchase superfast broadband via their internet 
service provider. Further investment in digital infrastructure across GM will come from Virgin Medias Project Lightning which is currently 
extending it’s ‘fibre to the premises~ network to 7000 properties in Littleborough. The Greater Manchester Combined Authority has bid for £40m 
to the Government’s Full Fibre Network Fund which over 3 years will  connect over 1600 health and social care premises, GM Fire and Rescue 
sites and LA premises and provide a ‘giga-bit voucher scheme’ for businesses. The funding is fundamental to the delivering of the GMCA Digital 
Strategy.....(2 of 3) 

09/01/18 

Skills For Employment – this GM programme is delivered in the borough by the Council’s Employment Links Team and is meeting all targets, 
including income for the Council. Rochdale has the highest performance in Greater Manchester on this programme...Working Well (programme 
for unemployed with health conditions into work) – this is delivered by Ingeus in 7 of the 10 GM districts including Rochdale. To date 248 borough 
residents with health conditions have been helped into work and provided with in-work support to help sustain the employment. Targets are being 
met...GM Business Start-up support – this will start at the end of January 2018 after protracted negotiations between DCLG and GMCA regarding 
the use of EU funding. Targets are being finalised but will include pre and post start support...Business Growth Hub – business support services 
across Greater Manchester. Quarterly performance information is provided across a wide range of activity including: business supported, jobs 
created, inward investment, financial assistance and exporting. Generally the borough,  along with other northern GM boroughs, have a lower 
number of investments  and businesses supported by the Business Growth Hub than the city centre or borough’s in the south of GM.  An action 
plan for 2018/19 is being developed to ensure the borough and its businesses gets the support needed.....(3 of 3).. 

09/01/18 

The Council is working to support the GMCA prepare a revised Draft GM Spatial Framework for a 12 week consultation during the Summer of 
2018.  Work is taking place to assess the viability and deliverability of the Northern Gateway strategic employment sites and to review our 
existing brownfield land supply, site capacities and to increase densities around transport interchanges and town centres. A pipeline of future 
transport projects to support the 2040 Transport Strategy and GMSF is being developed for future transport funding bids.  Work taking place to 
support development of a 10 year GM Rail Strategy and Mayoral GM Congestion Plan which will be subject to Member consultation during 2018.  
.. 

09/01/18 

 

 

 

E17010 Deliver high quality, effective services that exceed Council and 
national targets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Planning Performance above national targets for planning services....Successful implementation of the Council’s Asset Strategy...  

Performance in Q3 exceeded performance targets although performance has declined compared with Q1 and Q2 as a result of staff departures 
and consequent gaps in recruitment. 100% major applications (60% target), 78% of Minor applications (target 65%) and 85.8% Others (target 
80%). There were no appeals allowed against Major planning appeals within the quarter and no planning application fee refunds.  Two 
applications were determined over 26 weeks without extensions of time. Five enforcement notices were served in Q3. Two applications were 
determined over 26 weeks without extensions of time. There were no appeals lodged or allowed against Major planning appeals within the 
quarter and no planning application fee refunds.  

09/01/18 

 

 

 
 

   

 

P
age 28



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2017/2018 

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will
be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



21st June 2017

19th July 2017

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Final Performance monitoring at the 
end of the 5 year transfer period

Renewable Energy Scrutiny Study Group Update for information

20th September 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update Update for information

Performance Monitoring 2016/17 Registered 
Providers

Performance management and 
monitoring

Food and Feed Plan 2017/18 Performance management and 
monitoring

Playing Pitch Strategy Scrutiny of proposals

22nd November 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates - 
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Housing Strategy 2017-2020 Scrutiny of proposals
Enforcement Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Adverse  Weather Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Property Investment Strategy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA Scrutiny Minutes For information/discussion

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2017/2018

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes For information/discussion

Page 30



21st March 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Integrated Place Work Presentation on service provision

Housing Allocations A report outlining the duties of the 
Council

Directorate Plan Update:
a. Neigbourhoods Directorate
b. Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 31



COMMITTEE REFERRAL FROM ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE (held 7th 
FEBRUARY 2018) TO THE COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND 

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

HIGHWAYS INDICATIVE TWO YEAR WORK PROGRAMME - ROCHDALE 
TOWNSHIP

57 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods, the purpose of which was to afford Members the opportunity to 
consider the 2018 - 2020 highways and structures capital programme, insofar as it 
affected Rochdale Township.

The Committee expressed their concerns at the way in which the highways 
maintenance contract across the Borough was being managed by Balfour Beatty, the 
contractor undertaking highways maintenance work on behalf of the Council. It was 
suggested that the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be requested to establish a scrutiny study group to examine this 
matter in more detail and, if necessary, make appropriate recommendations to the 
Cabinet thereon.

Alternatives considered:
The alternative to carrying out this programme would to maintain the assets (as 
detailed in the submitted report) on a ‘worst first’ basis. This approach was 
considered to be more expensive than carrying out preventative maintenance and 
was deemed, by the Department for Transport, as being inefficient and as such 
could lead to Rochdale Borough Council getting a reduction in funding from the 
Department for Transport. 

Decision:
1. The Committee approves the 2018 - 2020 Highways and Structures Capital 

Programme insofar as it affects the area covered by Rochdale Township.
2. Where events that arise which are external to the Council and require a rapid 

response, or agreement in principle, the Township Committee authorises the 
Council’s Head of Highways to vary the programme, insofar as it affects the 
area covered by the Rochdale Township, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Environment and Housing and the Chair of Rochdale Township 
Committee.

3. The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be requested to establish a scrutiny study group to 
examine the operation of the Highways Maintenance Contract for the 
Rochdale Borough, especially in relation to the performance of Balfour 
Beatty Limited and, if necessary, make appropriate recommendations to 
the Cabinet thereon.

Reason for the decisions:
The programme which was detailed in the submitted report was put together based 
on network condition data, engineer site visits and guidance issued by the 
Department for Transport. The programme aimed to maximise the improvement to 
the network by carrying out the most efficient and cost effective engineering works to 

Page 32

Agenda Item 11



the asset. The programme had been produced to ensure maximum efficiency and 
cost benefit which should satisfy the relevant element of the Department for 
Transport’s self-assessment questionnaire which would enable Rochdale Borough 
Council to receive the maximum budget allocation available from the Department for 
Transport.

Page 33



Document is Restricted

Page 34

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Housing Allocations
	8 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Communities, Regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 3 Performance Update

	9 Economy Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Communities, Regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 3 Performance Update

	10 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18
	11 Committee Referral
	13 Rochdale Development Agency – Investment and Marketing Delivery Plan 2017/18

